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PER CURI AM *

Appel I ant Ronal d Wayne Shugart appeal s hi s ki dnappi ng and
carjacking convictions. Finding no reversible error, we AFFI RM

BACKGROUND

Shugart and his acconplice, Annette Thiem were traveling
from Texas to South Carolina when Shugart’s truck broke down near
Vi cksburg, M ssissippi. After being refused a ride by seventeen-
year-ol d Janes “Shane” Gl nore and his fifteen-year-old girlfriend,
Heat her Pritchard, Shugart forced the teenagers into Pritchard’ s

Dodge Neon at knife point. Shugart picked up Thiem and they drove

Pursuant to 5TH QR R 47.5, the court has determined that this
opi ni on should not be published and is not precedent except under the linmted
circunstances set forth in 5TH QR R 47.5.4.



wth the teenagers to South Carolina in the Neon. At sone point,
Thiem robbed the teenagers of their wallets and cell phone.
Shugart and Thiem were arrested after a mnor car accident with
anot her vehicle, when the teenagers al erted energency personnel of
t hei r abducti on.

After a three-day jury trial, Shugart was convicted of
carjacking, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 8 2119. The jury was unable
to reach a verdict on the kidnapping count, but, upon retrial
Shugart was al so convi cted of kidnapping, in violation of 18 U S. C
§ 1201(a). He now appeal s.

DI SCUSSI ON

Shugart argues that the district court erred by admtting
evi dence of the carjacking and robbery at his kidnapping retrial.
However, the evidence was “part of a single crimnal episode,” and

therefore was intrinsic to the kidnapping charge. United States v.

M randa, 248 F.3d 434, 440 (5th Gr. 2001). Additionally, because
ki dnappi ng and carjacking have distinctive elenents, there is no

doubl e jeopardy violation. See Henderson v. Quarternman, 460 F.3d

654, 662-63 (5th Gr. 2006) (citing Blockburger v. United States,

284 U.S. 299, 304, 52 S. C. 180, 182 (1932)).

Shugart next argues that he was prejudiced by two
references the prosecution nmade to his Aryan Nation nenbership
Even assum ng the remarks were inproper, there is no reversible

error. The statenents did not affect Shugart’s substantial rights,



as they were not “so pronounced and persistent that it perneate[d]

the entire atnosphere of the trial.” United States v. lbarra, 286

F.3d 795, 798 (5th Gr. 2002). Moreover, the trial court granted
Shugart all the relief he requested at trial by sustaining his
objections and instructing the jury to disregard the renmarks.
Shugart also contends it was error to admt the
statenents Glnore and Pritchard nmade to energency personnel. The
statenents, however, were nmade i nmedi ately after the car accident,
while the teenagers were still in Shugart’s clutches; they were
pl ai nly adm ssi ble as excited utterances. See FED. R EviD. 803(2).
Contrary to Shugart’s assertions, the interstate nexus
el ements of both statutes were satisfied. Shugart drove the
captive teenagers from Mssissippi to South Carolina, satisfying
the kidnapping statute, 18 U S.C. 8§ 1201(a). Addi tionally, the
prosecution adduced at trial that Pritchard s Neon had previously
traveled on famly trips to Louisiana, Tennessee, and Arkansas,
thus satisfying the carjacking statute, 18 U S.C § 21109. See

United States v. Mirgan, 238 F.3d 1180, 1186 (9th G r. 2001).

Finally, the carjacking statute is not unconstitutionally

vague. United States v. Harris, 25 F.3d 1275, 1280 (5th Gr.

1994) .
Because Shugart’ s contentions are neritless, the district

court’s judgnent is AFFI RVED.



